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OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI
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)

Chapter 31 Rules





)
File No. TW-2017-0078
Comments of the Missouri Small Telephone Company Group and

the Missouri Independent Telephone Company Group


In response to the Missouri Public Service Commission’s (Commission) invitation to comment on the future of the Missouri Universal Service Fund (MoUSF), the Missouri Small Telephone Company Group (STCG) and Missouri Independent Telephone Company Group (MITG),
 hereinafter collectively referred to as the STCG, offer the following comments:

Introduction


The STCG is made up of thirty-five (35) small, Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers (ILECs), each serving between approximately 200 and 15,000 access lines in predominately rural areas within the state of Missouri.  The STCG companies have a long history of providing state-of-the-art telecommunication service to rural Missouri.  Many STCG members have been providing service for over 100 years, and the STCG companies continue to upgrade their networks to provide advanced telecommunications services, including broadband transmission services, in rural Missouri.  
STCG Comments
1. Should the $6.50 support amount be revised? 

Yes.  It would appear, based on Staff’s Memorandum and assessment of the MoUSF Fund balance, that there is sufficient funding to increase the Missouri Lifeline and Disabled support amount without necessitating an increase in the assessment level.  For example, Staff’s total statewide Lifeline and Disabled subscribers in November 2016 of 11,579 multiplied by the monthly discount of $6.50, times 12 months, equals an annual discount amount of $903,162.  If AT&T’s Lifeline and Disabled subscribers (4,313 at December 2016) are eliminated, that leaves only 7,266 statewide Lifeline and Disabled subscribers.  This number of subscribers multiplied by a monthly Lifeline and Disabled discount of $12.50, times 12 months, equals an annual discount amount of $1,089,900, which is only $186,738 more than the current annual discount amount.
  Given the MoUSF’s current surplus, it appears the Missouri Lifeline and Disabled subscriber discount of $6.50 can be increased substantially without requiring any increase in the current assessment level.  
The MoUSF support amount was last adjusted (from $3.50 to $6.50) on October 1, 2014 in File No. TO-2014-0333.  In that case, the Commission’s Staff, the Office of Public Counsel, and the STCG all recommended raising the support amount to $6.50.   In 2011, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) issued an order requiring Incumbent Local Exchange Companies (ILECs) to raise their residential local rates (i.e., a Local Rate Floor) in order to continue receiving Federal USF (FUSF) high-cost loop support.  As a result, nearly all the STCG companies raised their residential rates to $14.00 per line, per month. 

Since the MoUSF support amount was last raised to $6.50, the FCC’s Local Rate Floor has been raised from $14.00 to $18.00, and it is currently scheduled to increase again to $20.00 on June 1, 2017.  Thus, while local rates have increased by $4.00 and are scheduled to increase another $2.00 this June (for a total of $6.00), the MoUSF support amount for disabled and low-income customers has remained the same.  Such substantial rate increases will present significant challenges for low-income customers.  Indeed, in 2014 the PSC Staff recommended that “the Commission increase Missouri USF monthly support from $3.50 to $6.50 in order to help keep pace with rising rates for basic local telecommunications service.”
  
The STCG therefore recommends increasing the MoUSF support amount from $6.50 to $12.50 to offset the impact of the FCC’s rate floor increases on low-income customers.  Alternatively, the STCG recommends that the support amount be increased to $9.25 to match federal Lifeline support.  
2. Should the Missouri USF support a broadband-only service? 

Yes.  The STCG has previously commented on this question and rather than burdening these comments by repeating its prior pleadings, the STCG incorporates them by reference.
   
3. Should the Missouri USF provide some form of high-cost support? 

Yes.  As a result of the FCC’s November, 2011, Order Transforming the Federal Universal Service Fund and Intercarrier Compensation (the Transformation Order), FUSF support to the STCG companies, as well as Intercarrier Compensation (ICC) revenues have been, and will continue to be, significantly reduced.  At the same time, the Transformation Order required Eligible Telecommunications Carriers (ETCs), like the STCG companies, to provide Broadband services, which will require even more investment and ongoing operation and maintenance costs than they have heretofore expended.  In short, the FCC has required ETCs receiving FUSF high-cost support to spend even more money on their networks, while at the same time, the FCC is providing less financial support through FUSF and ICC to accomplish that mandate.  The FCC’s Transformation Order has, therefore, created a real need for states like Missouri to consider establishing their own high-cost funds to assist ETCs in continuing to provide state-of-the-art telecommunications services, including Broadband, in rural areas where the cost of doing so is significantly higher than more populous, urban areas.
4. What should be the Missouri USF assessment level?  
5. Should different assumptions be used to project Missouri USF revenues and expenses? 
The STCG believes these two questions are inter-related and will therefore provide one response to both.  Determining an appropriate assessment level for Lifeline/Disabled support depends on a number of assumptions or inputs.  For example, the MoUSF Board and/or its Administrator will need to know (or project) the number of state Lifeline and Disabled subscribers.  As noted in Staff’s Memorandum, this number has been significantly reduced as a result of AT&T Missouri’s recent relinquishment of its ETC status in Missouri.  In addition, the MoUSF Board and/or Administrator will need to know the amount of the discount (which relates to the answer to question #1 above).  Also, the MoUSF Board and/or the Administrator will need to know (or project) the expenses associated with administering the MoUSF Lifeline and Disabled programs.  Finally, the MoUSF Board and/or the Administrator will need to know or project the amount of Net Jurisdictional Revenues against which the assessment amount is applied in order to generate sufficient revenues to recover the anticipated costs of the program (including the administration costs).

At this time, and assuming the Fund is limited to Lifeline and Disabled assistance, the STCG does not believe an increase to the MoUSF assessment amount is necessary.
6. Are there any other issues relevant to maintaining the Missouri USF? 

The STCG is not aware at this time of any other issues relevant to maintaining the MoUSF.
7. Should the Missouri USF be eliminated? If yes, how and when should it be done? What should be done with any unused funds? 

No.  In 1996, the Missouri General Assembly enacted Section 392.248, RSMo., which provides that the MoUSF Board “shall create a Universal Service Fund” and “shall supervise the management of the Universal Service Fund.”  (Emphasis added.)  Furthermore, the Legislature directed the Commission to promulgate rules to establish the MoUSF, as well as provide for its funding and ongoing administration.  Therefore, the Commission does not have the authority to eliminate the Fund, and a change in the existing statute would be necessary in order to eliminate the Fund.
8. Are there any other issues relevant to the future operations of the Missouri USF? 

The STCG is not aware of any other issues at this time.
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ATTACHMENT A

Missouri Small Telephone Company Group
BPS Telephone Company 

Citizens Telephone Company of Higginsville, Mo.

Craw-Kan Telephone Cooperative, Inc. 

Ellington Telephone Company

Farber Telephone Company

Fidelity Telephone Company

Goodman Telephone Company

Granby Telephone Company

Grand River Mutual Telephone Corporation

Green Hills Telephone Corporation

Holway Telephone Company

Iamo Telephone Company

Kingdom Telephone Company

K.L.M. Telephone Company

Le-Ru Telephone Company

Lathrop Telephone Company

Mark Twain Rural Telephone Company

McDonald County Telephone Company

Miller Telephone Company

New Florence Telephone Company

New London Telephone Company

Northeast Missouri Rural Telephone Company

Orchard Farm Telephone Company

Oregon Farmers Mutual Telephone Company

Ozark Telephone Company

Peace Valley Telephone Company, Inc.

Rock Port Telephone Company

Seneca Telephone Company

Steelville Telephone Exchange, Inc. 

Stoutland Telephone Company    

Missouri Independent Telephone Company Group
Alma Communications Company d/b/a Alma Telephone Company

Chariton Valley Telephone Corporation

Choctaw Telephone Company

MoKAN DIAL Inc.

Otelco Mid-Missouri, LLC

� See Attachment A.  


� If MoUSF Lifeline/Disabled subscribership continues to decline as predicted in Staff’s memorandum, then the increase in the annual discount amount will be even smaller.


� In the Matter of the Amount Assessed on Companies to Fund the Missouri Universal Service Fund, File No. TO-2014-0333, Staff Recommendation, filed July 8, 2014, p. 1 (emphasis added).


� See “Comments of the STCG on Proposed Lifeline Rule Revisions and Staff’s Questions Whether the MoUSF Can Support Broadband-only Service” filed Oct. 20, 2016 and “Reply Comments of the STCG on Proposed Lifeline Rule Revisions and Staff’s Question Whether the MoUSF Can Support Broadband-only Service” filed Nov. 15, 2016.


� If the Commission decides to apply the discount to broadband-only lines and/or decides to implement a Missouri High-Cost Fund, this will also impact the overall cost and assessment level of the MoUSF.
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